
 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
The next meeting of the PERSONNEL Committee will be held at 6.30 pm on 
WEDNESDAY, 25 OCTOBER 2023 in the Council Chamber. 
 
I do hope you can be there. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
  
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

 
2.   TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS 

MEETING 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

 
3.   DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, 

OTHER REGISTRABLE AND NON REGISTRABLE 
INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable 
interest in respect of matters contained in the agenda. 
 

 

 
4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
 

 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
5.   SAFEGUARDING POLICY 

 
(Pages 7 - 20) 

 Report of the Director of Resources & Deputy Chief 
Executive enclosed. 
 
 

 

 
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 
 
6.   MINUTES OF WORKING GROUPS 

 
 

 None. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

7.   REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE 
BODIES 
 

 

 None. 
 

 
 
8.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
9.   PAYMENT OF HONORARIA 

1 
Report of the Chief Executive enclosed. 
 
 

(Pages 21 - 22) 

 
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 
 
10.   GENERAL STAFFING UPDATE 

1 
Report of the Director of Resources & Deputy Chief 
Executive enclosed. 
 

(Pages 23 - 26) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Electronic agendas sent to members of Personnel – Councillor Susan Bibby, Councillor 
Donna O'Rourke, Councillor Rosemary (Rosie) Elms (Chair), Councillor Simon Hore, 
Councillor Steve Farmer, Councillor Ryan Corney, Councillor Lee Jameson, Councillor 
Karl Barnsley and Councillor David Birtwhistle. 
 
 
 
Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk  

mailto:committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk


 

 
 

Minutes of Personnel 
 
Meeting Date:  Wednesday, 30 August 2023, starting at  6.30 pm 
Present:  Councillor R Elms (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 
 
S Farmer 
S Bibby 
D O'Rourke 
S Hore 
 

R Corney 
L Jameson 
K Barnsley 
D Birtwhistle 
 

 
In attendance: Chief Executive and Head of Human Resources 
  
 

221 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
  
 

222 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2023 were approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman. 
  
 

223 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND 
NON REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-
registrable interests. 
  
 

224 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
  
 

225 WORKFORCE PROFILE 2023  
 
The Director of Resources & Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report updating 
members on the Workforce Profile 2023 which was published annually in compliance 
with the Equality Act 2010. 
  
The report listed the protected characteristics that it was unlawful to discriminate 
against under the Equality Act and explained the duties that those subject to the 
equality duty must have due regards to. The latest Workforce Profile Report as at 31 
March 2023 was included in the report, and had been published on the Council’s 
website in accordance with the requirements of the specific duty. The data provided a 
comprehensive overview of the current workforce and was useful for workforce 
planning as well as meeting the requirements of the Equality Act 2010. 
  
 

226 MINUTES OF WORKING GROUPS  
 
There were no minutes from Working Groups. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

  
 

227 REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies. 
  
 

228 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED: That by virtue of the next item of business being exempt information 
under Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting. 
  
 

229 PAYMENT OF HONORARIA  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report that Committee consider a payment of 
honorarium to a member of staff who had covered the duties of a more senior post. 
  
The factors and financial implications to be considered when assessing the 
application were set out in the report.  
  
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
  
Approve the Honorarium payment to the member of staff as set out in the report. 
  
 

230 APPROVAL OF POST GRADUATE COURSE  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report for Committee to authorise the support to fund 
a part-time (2 year) post-graduate Royal Town Planning Institute (RTPI) Accredited 
Planning Degree for a member of staff in the Economic Development and Planning 
(EDP) section of the Council. 
  
The member of staff had the relevant under-graduate qualification to be eligible for 
the course which was the best route to securing RTPI Chartered Membership which 
the Council valued, and supporting the individual’s development would encourage 
employee retention. 
  
The study options and workload impact had been assessed and were detailed in the 
report. 
  
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
  
Authorise RVBC to support and fund a member of staff to undertake a part-time (2 
year) post-graduate Royal Town Planning Institute (RTPI) Accredited Planning 
degree, with the chosen study option based on availability for September 2023 intake. 
  
 

231 GENERAL STAFFING UPDATE  
 
The Director of Resources & Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report informing 
members of general staffing matters since the last committee meeting. The report 
included information on appointments and resignations, internal movements, 
establishment changes, training and retirements. 
  

Page 4



 

 
 

The report noted that 9 new staff had been appointed between 16 May 2023 and 15 
August 2023 and that there had been 7 leavers in the same period. The report also 
noted that a member of staff had completed Qualification training, and there had been 
13 work experience placements during the reporting period. Letters of thanks were to 
be sent to the staff who have left the Council, where appropriate. 
  
There was discussion at the meeting around posts for which the Council struggles to 
recruit. The Councils Head of Human Resources confirmed that the new e-
recruitment system project was ongoing and was planned to be live from 1 April 2024. 
  
 
 
The meeting closed at 6.56 pm 
 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, 
Rebecca Tait rebecca.tait@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO PERSONNEL COMMITTEE  

                                                                                                                                                                     
 
meeting date: WEDNESDAY, 25 OCTOBER 2023 
title: SAFEGUARDING POLICY  
submitted by: JANE PEARSON, DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES & DEPUTY CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE 
principal author: MARK BEVERIDGE, HEAD OF CULTURAL AND LEISURE SERVICES 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To ask Committee to approve the revised Council’s Safeguarding Policy. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions: 
 

• Council Ambitions: In order to meet our objective of being a well managed 
Council, it is important that we have appropriate policies and procedures in place 
to ensure that staff are fit to carry out their duties and responsibilties at all times. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council has had a Safeguarding Children’s and Vulnerable Adults Policy for a 

number of years, although Districts have limited direct involvement with the services 
which raise most safeguarding concerns.  Nonetheless, it is important that Districts 
ensure that residents of any age are safeguarded when coming into contact with the 
services offered by District Councils. As well as ensuring staff carrying out their work 
around the Borough are aware of potential issues they may encounter or observe, 
which may need to be escalated to the County Council to be considered by their 
specialist staff. 
 

2.2 Recent amendments to legislation have led to a number of changes being required to 
the policy, together with others changes such as contact numbers. The opportunity 
has also been taken to make the policy easier to read, this follows discussions at the 
District Safeguarding group, where district leads discuss current issues and best 
practice. 
 

2.3  The current policy is included within the staff handbook and there is an 
accompanying summary booklet to help staff understand how they can help with the 
Council’s duty in respect of safeguarding which is seen as everyone’s responsibility.  

        
3. ISSUES 
 
3.1    An updated version of the revised policy is attached, Appendix A.   
 
3.2 UNISON have been consulted on the policy and support the latest revisions, the 

policy if approved, will be the basis for amendments to the staff handbook which 
provides an easy to read guide to the information contained within the policy. 

 
3.2 Once approved, staff will be made aware of the new policy via the monthly staff 

newsletter, (Backchat) and via email notification and where appropriate go onto staff 
notice boards for those with no work email.  The policy will also be uploaded to the 
‘Staff Handbook’ area of the staff intranet. Staff have previously completed e-training 

DECISION

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



2 

packages to help them in developing their awareness of the issues with respect to 
safeguarding, combined with in person training. This will need to be revisited for all 
staff on the back of adopting a new policy.   

 
3.3 As safeguarding is an issue for everyone in the Council, there will also be a briefing 

arranged for Councillors, including access to the e-trianing package staff will 
complete. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

• Resources: staff time in completing e-learning packages or attending briefing 
sessions. 

  
• Technical, Environmental and Legal:   formal policies are key documents to ensure 

that the Council complies with statutory legislation and in doing so helps ensure 
that the communites it serves are able to fulfill their potential. 

 
• Political: no implications identified. 
 
• Reputation: the updated policy will maintain the Council’s reputation as a good 

employer by demonstrating that our policies adhere with current legislation. 
 

• Equalities and Diversity – having clear policies and procedure ensures that all 
staff/residents are treated fairly and consistently. 

 
5.  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
5.1 That the   revised Safeguarding Policy as attached in Appendix A be approved. 
 
5.2 That the policy is used to revise the staff handbook. 
 
5.3 That a series of briefings and training sessions are arranged for staff and Councillors. 
    
 
 
 
 
MARK BEVERIDGE                                                               JANE PEARSON 
HEAD OF CULTURAL AND LEISURE SERVICES               DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
APPENDIX 1 – SAFEGUARDING POLICY (REVISED OCT 2023) 
 
 
   
 
For further information please ask for Mark Beveridge, ext 4479 

Page 8



 
October 2023  Version 2.1 
 

  

 
  
  

  
  

 

 
 

Safeguarding  

 Policy  

  
 

Important! 
If you’re worried about a child, young person  
or adult please use the flowchart on the back 
page to decide the correct course of action   

  

Page 9



 
October 2023  Version 2.1 
 

    

CONTENTS 
 
Policy Administration ......................................................................................................................3 

Policy Ownership .........................................................................................................................3 

Version Control and Review Date ...............................................................................................3 

Equality Implications ....................................................................................................................3 

Supporting documents or legislation relating to this Policy .........................................................3 

Our Commitment to Safeguarding ..................................................................................................4 
1. Who to tell ............................................................................................................................4 

2. Procedure for reporting and dealing with concerns .............................................................4 

3. Decisions about sharing concerns .......................................................................................5 

4. Support for anyone reporting or involved with a safeguarding incident ...............................5 

5. Code of Conduct for staff, volunteers, and Councillors .......................................................5 

6. Definitions and Supporting Information ...............................................................................6 

7. How to protect children, young people, and adults at risk. ..................................................7 

Taking Action .............................................................................................................................11 

 
 
 

Page 10

file:///M:/Policies,%20Forms%20and%20Procedures%20Index%202022/New%20Policies/Safeguarding/SAFEGUARDING%20Childrens%20Policy%20v2.1%20Dec%2022.docx%23_Toc124509057


3 
 

Policy Administration  
Policy Ownership  
For any queries about this policy, please contact the plan owner. 
Department Community Services 
Owner Mark Beveridge Mark.Beveridge@ribblevalley.gov.uk 01200 (41)4479 
Committee Policy and Finance / Community Services / Personnel?? 

 
This policy is maintained and published on behalf of Ribble Valley Borough Council. A copy of this 
policy will be published on the Council Intranet and will be reviewed and updated as stated below.   
 
Version Control and Review Date  
Version Date Reason for 

Publication  
Approved by Committee 
/ Date 

Review  
Date 

V2.0 December 
2022 

Review of the policy Committee Name / Date XX/XX/20XX 

V2.1 13/01/23 Policy dropped into 
new Policy template 

Committee Name / Date XX/XX/20XX 

V2.2     
 
This policy will be reviewed, as a minimum, on an annual basis. However, consideration should be 
given to reviewing the policy should there be any changes in legislation or guidance. The 
policy/procedure owner will ensure the document is reviewed as stated.  
 
Equality Implications  
 Action Yes / No 
An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been completed  
EIA Hyperlink  

 
Supporting documents or legislation relating to this Policy  
Please include any supporting documents / legislation 

1. Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) 
2. Data Protection Act 1998 
3. Common Assessment Framework (CAF) 
4. Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 
5. ‘Working Together to Safeguard Children’ 
6. NSPCC website 
7. Internet/Email Acceptable Use Policy 
8. Information Technology Security Policy 
9. Data Protection Policy   
10. Ribble Valley Borough Council Recruitment and Selection Code of Practice 
11. Local Safeguarding Children’s Board (LSCB) Safer Working Practices Guidance 

  

Page 11

mailto:Mark.Beveridge@ribblevalley.gov.uk


4 
 

Our Commitment to Safeguarding  
  
Ribble Valley Borough Council delivers a range of services and activities that impact on the 
lives of children, young people, and adults both directly and indirectly. Safeguarding these 
groups - ensuring their welfare, safety, and health - is of paramount importance. We are 
committed to providing safe and supportive services that will give these groups, irrespective 
of age, gender, ethnicity, disability, sexual orientation, or religious belief the opportunities to 
achieve their full potential, with protection from abuse.  
 
We will:  
  
• Have commitment from senior managers and Councillors to safeguarding.  
• Have a safe recruitment and selection process.  
• Ensure all relevant staff are Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked at the 

appropriate level.  
• Provide training at appropriate levels for staff, volunteers, and Councillors.  
• Have designated ‘Safeguarding ‘Advisors’ or ‘Safeguarding Contacts’  
• Have information about our safeguarding processes easily accessible on our internet 

for children, young people, adults, and their families.  
• Have all the relevant information for staff available on our intranet and from their line 

manager.  
• Have an easily understandable reporting and monitoring system, working in 

accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998, maintaining confidentiality and 
sharing information on a need-to-know basis.   

• Work co-operatively with partner organisations/services, including using the 
Common Assessment Framework (CAF)  

• Ensure licence applicants for taxis, street trading and other similar activities are DBS 
checked and it is renewed appropriately.  

  
1. Who to tell  
 
1.1 All suspicions, and concerns must be reported immediately to a Designated 

Safeguarding Officer or one of the others named below: 
 
Designated Safeguarding 
Officer (DSO)  

Mark Beveridge, Head of Cultural 
and Leisure Services 

01200 414479 

Safeguarding officers Liz Rawson, HR Officer  
Julie Smith, HR Officer 
Rachael Stott, Housing Officer 
Colin Winterbottom, Leisure 
Officer  

01200 414409 
01200 414409 
01200 413235 
01200 414588 

  
1.2 If any of the above are unavailable do not delay, contact: 
 

- Lancashire County Council Adult Social Care  - 0300 123 6720 
- Lancashire County Council Children’s Customer Care - 0300 123 6722 
- Lancashire Police      - 999 

 
2. Procedure for reporting and dealing with concerns 
 
2.1 - Stay calm and listen carefully 

- If the child or adult at risk is present reassure them 

Page 12



5 
 

- Respond sensitively and take the report seriously 
- Do not make promises of confidentiality or on outcomes 
- Keep questions to a minimum, just clarify your understanding and leave the 

detailed questioning to the police or the social care professionals. 
- Make the person fully aware that you cannot ‘keep a secret’ and must disclose 

any evidence of abuse to the appropriate agency 
- Make a note of everything that was discussed as soon as possible after the 

disclosure (see ‘how to record your concerns’ below).  
 

3. Decisions about sharing concerns 
 
3.1 If an adult at risk does not wish concerns to be followed up, we will take their wishes 

into account before what to do, considering: 
 

- The perceived level of risk to the individual and/or others, and  
- Their capacity to understand the matter in questions to make decisions relating 

to it. 
 
3.2 This decision will be made by the DSO. 
 
3.3 In some instances it may be important to talk with parents or carers to clarify any 

concerns (but not the alleged abuser). For example, if a child seems withdrawn, there 
may be a reasonable explanation for such behaviour which a parent can provide.  

 
3.4 However, sharing such concerns may present a greater risk in some circumstances, 

for example, were the parent/carer responsible for the abuse. In such circumstances 
report your concerns to the DSO. 

 
4. Support for anyone reporting or involved with a safeguarding incident 
 
4.1 For staff who may be involved with a safeguarding case, it may be necessary to seek 

support for any emotional trauma that may arise from being involved in something 
which although not a common occurrence for Council staff can be distressing. Please 
either discuss this with your line manager, HR, or the DSO, or alternatively the Council 
provide confidential support via an employee assist programme (PAM assist). 

 
5. Code of Conduct for staff, volunteers, and Councillors  
  
5.1 It is important for all staff, paid or unpaid, and Councillors to behave correctly and to 

be positive role models for the children, young people, and adults at risk they 
encounter as part of their daily work. Any staff in regular, unsupervised contact with 
children and young people, or any other ‘regulated activity’ (as defined by the 
Protection of Freedoms Act 2012) must adhere to appropriate guidelines.  

  
5.2 Appropriate training will be provided to any staff member having regular contact with 

children and young people. Managers must also develop local policies and systems 
to maximise staff safety including the need to carry out risk assessments as 
appropriate – if you feel that you have a training need or want to know more, please 
speak to your line manager. However, the following are common points for anyone 
to consider which will help to create a positive culture and safeguard staff against 
false allegations:  

  

Page 13



6 
 

• Treat everyone fairly and with respect. Maintain professional boundaries and 
don’t have favourites.  

• Respect their right to privacy.  
• Always work in an open environment, avoiding private or unobserved 

situations. Where appropriate encourage the individuals to bring in a friend, 
leave a door open, inform colleagues where you are and how long you will 
be.  

• Don’t give lifts outside of agreed activities.   
• Don’t take people to your home.  
• If you must visit a person in their home always make sure that your manager 

is aware of this, and you record the home visit.  
• Don’t develop social relationships with people who are service users 

(including via social media).  
• Don’t accept money or gifts from service users – don’t give money or gifts to 

service users.  
• Never allow or engage in any inappropriate touching or physical contact.  
• If working with mixed gender groups of young people off site (on trips, at 

different venues) ensure there are always male and female staff with them 
unless previously agreed with the Designated Safeguarding Children Officer.  

• Don’t smoke or drink alcohol in the presence of service users in any work-
related environment.  

 
6. Definitions and Supporting Information  
 

• Child or young person – Anyone under the age of 18 years.  
• Adult at risk – A person aged 18 years or over, who is or may need community 

care services by reason of mental or other disability, age illness and who is or 
may be unable to take care of themselves or unable to protect themselves 
against significant harm or exploitation. 

• Parent – Parent, carer, or guardian. 
• Staff, elected members and volunteers – Anyone working on behalf of, 

delivering a service, or representing the Council. 
• Abuse – Any form of physical, emotional, or sexual mistreatment or lack of 

care that leads to injury or harm.  
• Physical Abuse – Actual or deliberate physical injury, or neglected failure to 

prevent injury or suffering, to a child or adult at risk. It may include broken limbs 
and head injuries and could involve hitting, shaking, throwing, burning, 
suffocating, or otherwise causing physical harm 

• Emotional Abuse – Actual or likely severe adverse effect of the emotional and 
behavioural development of a child or adult at risk, caused by persistent or 
severe ill treatment or rejection. It may involve causing a child or adult at risk 
to feel that they are worthless or unloved, inadequate, or valued only insofar as 
they meet the needs of the other person. It may feature age or developmentally 
inappropriate expectations being placed on children. It may involve causing 
children or adults at risk to frequently feel frightened or in danger, or the 
exploitation or corruption of children or adults at risk. 

• Sexual Abuse and Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) – Actual or likely sexual 
exploitation, the child or adult at risk may be dependant and or developmentally 
immature. 

 Sexual abuse involving forcing or enticing a child or adult at risk to take part in 
sexual activities, whether they are aware of what is happening. The activities 
may include physical contact or non-physical activities such children looking at 
or in the production of pornographic material or encouraging children and 
adults at risk to behave in sexually inappropriate ways. 

Page 14



7 
 

 Child Sexual Exploitation is a crime that can affect any child, anytime, 
anywhere regardless of their social or ethnic background. It involves offenders 
grooming children and using their position to sexually abuse them. It takes 
many forms, through seemingly “consensual” relationships or because of gifts. 

• Neglect – Persistent failure to meet basic physical &/or psychological needs, 
likely resulting in the serious impairment of health and development. For 
example, a parent or carer failing to provide adequate food, shelter, clothing or 
protection from physical harm or danger, including access to medical care and 
treatment. It may also include neglect or, or unresponsiveness to a child, or 
adult at risk’s basic emotional needs. 

• Financial Abuse – Fraud, exploitation, pressure in connection with wills, 
property or inheritance or financial transactions or the misuse or 
misappropriation or property, possessions, or benefits. 

• Domestic Abuse – Domestic abuse is the abuse of power or control over one 
person by another, it can take many forms, and this may also lead to 
safeguarding issues arising from this type of abuse. 

• Prevent/Counter terrorism – Prevent is part of the UK’s counter terrorism 
strategy to safeguard people and communities from the threat of terrorism. It 
aims to prevent people from becoming involved in terrorism or supporting 
terrorism. This can be a safeguarding issue if people with vulnerabilities are 
“groomed” and manipulated to take part in criminal activity. People in this 
situation are usually in need of support. The Council offer training on Prevent 
Awareness and the internal reporting process is the same for any other 
safeguarding issue. 

• Local Authority Designated Officer – The LADO is based within Lancashire 
County Council’s Children’s Services and will be informed of any case where a 
person working with children has behaved in an inappropriate way. The LADO 
is contactable on 01772 536694 or LADO.Admin@lancashire.gov.uk  

 
For more information please see:  
• The full ‘Working Together to Safeguard Children’ document is available at  

Working together to safeguard children - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)  
• The NSPCC website has some helpful information on signs and symptoms of 

abuse. 
https://www.nspcc.org.uk/what-is-child-abuse/  

 
7. How to protect children, young people, and adults at risk. 
  

Staff members should follow the flowchart attached to this document, dependent on 
the situation.  

 
7.1 How to record your concerns  
  

If you are made aware of any instance of abuse, or have any concerns about it, it is 
important to note down the details in writing as soon as possible. As well as aiding 
you in taking the appropriate action as described above, it will also enable you to 
complete a safeguarding referral form, which is available on the intranet/from your 
line manager. This ensures the Council can maintain a full corporate record of all 
safeguarding issues encountered by staff, which will allow us to take action to reduce 
them in future.  
  
Records will be kept for an appropriate amount of time to comply with legislation. 
They should also be kept in a secure location and not shared with other staff, other 

Page 15

mailto:LADO.Admin@lancashire.gov.uk
http://Working%20together%20to%20safeguard%20children%20-%20GOV.UK%20(www.gov.uk)
https://www.nspcc.org.uk/what-is-child-abuse/


8 
 

than the designated safeguarding leads.  If you need more information on the safe 
storage of data/information, then contact Mark Beveridge or Stuart Haworth. 
  

7.2 e-Safeguarding  
  

e-Safeguarding refers to all safeguarding issues which relate to the use of Information 
and Communications Technology (ICT). There are two main elements to these 
issues:  

  
• e-Security: Procedures to protect the physical network infrastructure to ensure 

all confidential information and electronic data that the Council holds relating to 
children, young people and adults, is securely maintained. These procedures 
form part of our overall approach to electronic data sharing, which restricts the 
use of removable media (such as USB drives) and also governs secure external 
data transfer by secure GCSX (Government Connect Secure Extranet) e-mails.    

• e-Safety: Procedures to ensure that any child, young person, or adult accessing 
the internet whilst being employed by or under the care of Council staff, whether 
on Council premises or not, know their access rights and responsibilities and are 
kept safe. Every new employee with PC access is given copies of the Council’s 
‘Internet/Email Acceptable Use Policy, Information Technology Security Policy 
and data Protection Policy and are required to sign a declaration which states 
they have read and understood these polices that govern their use of the network.  

  
For further information regarding any of the above contact the ICT Manager on ext 
4458  
   

 For more information please see:  
• Internet/Email Acceptable Use Policy 

http://intranet.rvbc.gov.uk/downloads/INTERNET_email_acceptable_use_policy.pdf 
• Information Technology Security Policy 

http://intranet.rvbc.gov.uk/downloads/Information_Technology_Security_Policy.pdf  
• Data Protection Policy 

http://intranet.rvbc.gov.uk/downloads/Data_Protection_Policy.pdf 
   
7.3 Work Experience for Young People  
  

Individual services may offer work experience positions to young people as part of their 
ongoing education. The code of conduct and recruitment and selection procedures 
outlined above will apply. HR are available to offer tailored advice, including advising 
whether any member of staff supervising young people needs to undertake a DBS 
check.  

  
 For more information please see:  
  
• Ribble Valley Borough Council Recruitment and Selection Code of Practice 

http://intranet.rvbc.gov.uk/downloads/Recruitment_and_Selection_Policy.pdf 
• The Disclosure and Barring Service  

http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/dbs 
• Local Safeguarding Children’s Board (LSCB) Safer Working Practices Guidance  

http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/corporate/web/view.asp?siteid=3829&pageid=20745&e=e 
 

Page 16

http://intranet.rvbc.gov.uk/downloads/INTERNET_email_acceptable_use_policy.pdf
http://intranet.rvbc.gov.uk/downloads/Information_Technology_Security_Policy.pdf
http://intranet.rvbc.gov.uk/downloads/Data_Protection_Policy.pdf
http://intranet.rvbc.gov.uk/downloads/Recruitment_and_Selection_Policy.pdf
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/dbs
http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/corporate/web/view.asp?siteid=3829&pageid=20745&e=e


9 
 

  
 
7.4 Training  
  

It is the responsibility of each service, in liaison with HR, to make sure that all staff 
have received the appropriate level of training for them to be confident and competent 
when working with children and being able to recognise and respond to safeguarding 
concerns. Training must be updated regularly, to keep up with new developments and 
initiatives.  

  
7.5 New Starters   
  

All new starters will have an introduction to the safeguarding policy and procedures 
through their local/service induction process. Induction is more than reading a 
document and ticking a box, the trainer has to check out that employees have an 
understanding of the policy and processes. New starters who have had child 
protection/safeguarding training through a previous employer will still have to do the 
Council’s training – this training includes how to work within the Council’s safeguarding 
policy and procedures. In this way we make sure that those staff members that have 
contact with children have a workable understanding of Council policy and have the 
knowledge and skill to make sure that children are safe.  

  
Should a specific job role require a higher level of training, the recruiting manager will 
ensure that the appropriate training, whether internal or external, is undertaken as soon 
as possible after the new employee starts.   

 
7.6 All staff  
  

All staff will undertake a Safeguarding Awareness briefing, which gives a basic 
awareness of issues related to the safeguarding of children, young people, and 
vulnerable adults.  
  
Any other training needs relating to safeguarding issues will be identified through an 
employee’s annual appraisal process. Staff with regular contact with children will 
update their training every 3 years (as a minimum) and again it is the responsibility of 
the line manager to arrange for this training to take place.  

 
7.7 Allegations against Staff, Councillors or Volunteers  
  

Staff who work with children can be vulnerable to malicious or misplaced allegations 
against them.  Unfortunately, there are also occasions where some 
adults/professionals have been found to be perpetrators of child abuse or displaying 
unsuitable behaviours which would harm the children they work with.  
  
Allegations of harm or inappropriate behaviour made against staff, either paid or 
unpaid, are serious and must be dealt with by the Local Authority Designated Officer 
(LADO), a professional independent of Ribble Valley Borough Council who has been 
appointed by the Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board.  

  
The LADO is Tim Booth (01772 536694, tim.booth@lancashire.gov.uk). His role 
includes:  

  
• The management and oversight of individual cases  

Page 17

mailto:tim.booth@lancashire.gov.uk


10 
 

• Providing advice and guidance to employers and voluntary organisations  
• Liaising with the police and other agencies  
• Monitoring the progress of cases to ensure that they are dealt with as quickly 

as possible, consistent with a thorough and fair process  
  
7.8 Guidance for staff on dealing with allegations of harm or inappropriate behaviour  
  

If someone (a child, parent, service user, fellow colleague, etc) makes an allegation to 
you about another member of staff:  

  
• Do NOT investigate yourself but speak to your line manager  
• Your line manager will contact the DSCO and HR Manager  
• The DSO or Head of Human Resources will contact the LADO directly at the 

earliest available opportunity.  
  

If you have concerns about your line manager, the DSCO, or anyone else that may 
make the above process inappropriate, please refer to the Council’s ‘Whistleblowing’ 
Policy Whistleblowing_Policy_v1_Dec22.pdf.   

  
7.9 The Welfare of Staff   
  

Ribble Valley Borough Council is committed to following the correct process for dealing 
with any allegation against a member of staff, but it is also mindful of the welfare of that 
staff member and will provide appropriate help and support to them. Line managers, in 
liaison with HR, will offer their staff members appropriate advice and support.  

  
  

Page 18

http://intranet/downloads/Whistleblowing_Policy_v1_Dec22.pdf


11 
 

Yes

Throughout the above, please keep notes.  This ensures we can maintain a full record of all safeguarding issues encountered by staff, 
allowing us to learn for future incidents.  Please forward your notes to the DSO, Mark Beveridge, they will be kept in accordance with 

GDPR.  The DSO will also advise on confidentiality and if a referral to LCC or the Police is required with or without consent.

Yes

No

Yes

No

No

Yes No

No

Yes

No

Yes

 
 
 
 
If an incident occurs or you have concerns, please follow the flowchart below to understand what 

to do: 
 

Taking Action

Start Here
Is there a serious and immediate 

threat to a child? Call 999

Is it a safeguarding concern?

Is it during normal working hours?

Is your line manager 
available?

Contact LCC
Social Services on

0300 123 6722
8pm – 8am

M-F/weekends/Bank Hols

Low level concern.

Have you got consent from 
family/child/young person to 

make referral?

Discuss the matter 
with your line 

manager.  They will 
advise.

Contact the Designated 
Safeguarding Officer:

Mark Beveridge,
extension 4479 or

HR on 4409: Liz Rawson or 
Julie Smith

Inform them that 
there are services 
available such as 

Children and Family 
Wellbeing Service

If they are unable to 
advise, then:

Help refused or not 
convenient to speak 
freely.  Discuss with 

your manager

Anyone can 
anonymously contact 
the NSPCC helpline, 
24 hours a day, on:

0808 800 5000

Contact Lancashire County Council 
Social Services directly.

(See page 4 for contact details)

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Safeguarding Policy
	submitted by:	JANE PEARSON, DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES & DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
	SAFEGUARDING  Policy v2 Oct 23
	Policy Administration
	Policy Ownership
	Version Control and Review Date
	Equality Implications
	Supporting documents or legislation relating to this Policy

	Our Commitment to Safeguarding
	1.	Who to tell
	2.	Procedure for reporting and dealing with concerns
	3.	Decisions about sharing concerns
	4.	Support for anyone reporting or involved with a safeguarding incident
	5.	Code of Conduct for staff, volunteers, and Councillors
	6.	Definitions and Supporting Information
	7.	How to protect children, young people, and adults at risk.
	For further information regarding any of the above contact the ICT Manager on ext 4458




	9 Payment of Honoraria
	10 General Staffing Update

